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The Goodhand House, a frame vernacular dwelling, is architecturally significant for the 1-1/2-story log wing, a rare and unusual
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joints in its post and plank method of construction.
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Goodhand House garly 19th century
Chester '

Private

The Goodhand House began as a small 1 1/2 story
hall-parlor house dating to the early 19th century.
At an early date a post-and-plank kitchen wing was
constructed adjacent to the south gable, and in the
late 19th century the main house was raised to 2 1/2

" gtories. The post-and-plank wing is one of the finest

examples of this type of construction in Tidewater
Maryland, and is complemented by a later post-and-plank
corn crib in the rear yard with unusual dovetailed
corner post construction. '
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3 DESCRIPTION Qh-10
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
_EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED x:_ORIGTNAL SITE
——-GO0OD __RUINS z{_ALTERED —.MOVED DATE
¥ _FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Goodhand House is located on the west side
of Dominion Road on Kent Island, about one-guarter
mile south of U. 8. Route 50/301. The house facés
the road, and is heavily overgrown. To the rear
of the house is a small log plank farm building that
was probably used as a corn crib.

The house was built in three seperate stages.
The earliest house was of frame construction, one-
and-one-half stories high, three bays wide and one
room deep. The date of construction is uncertain,
but appears to be circa 1815-1830. In the second
cuarter of the 19th century, a small log plank
wing, also one-and-one-half stories high, was added
to the south gable of the original house. In the
second half of the 19th century, probably circa
1875, the main house was raised to two-and-one~half

stories. At the same time, or perhaps a few years

later, a one story frame porch was added to the front

(east) facade of the main house. A small pantry

was added to the southwest corner in the 20th century.

The principal facade faces east, with a door
in the center bay flanked by a pair of six-over-six

windows on the firet floor and six-over-six wingows

in the north and south bays on the second floor.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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CONTINUATION SHEERT

7.1 DESCRIPTION

A one-story worch stretches across this facade, with
turned columns and scrolled gingerbread brackets.

On the north gable, there is a flush chimney with
the brickwork exnosed on the first floor. This is laid
in random-course common bond. Two small windows flank
the chimney in the uoper gable. The original sash is
gone, but it wrobably consisted of a single four-light
sash in each window.

The west or rear facaca is identical to the front
facade, with a door in the center bay on the first floor
and six-over-six windows in the north and south bays on
both the first and sccond floors.

The south gable is almost entirely covered by the

e

-

log addition. The exterior chimne ey is shared by botﬁ
the méin house éné the wing, and shows evidence of
having been rebuilt. A small window omening is located
on the east side of the chimney in the uprner gable

The exterior siding consists of beaded horizontal
weatherboards dating to the first period of construction
on the first floor of the front facade and both gables,
and later plain weatherboards on the entire resar facade

and\ the second floor of the remaining walls., A plain

-box cornice extends across both facades, returns at the
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CONTINUATION SHEET

7.2 DESCRIPTION

gables and is carried up the gable eaves. The roéf is
covered with asphault shingles. There are no dormer
windows.

The south wing is an exceptional example of
post-and-plank construction. Although it has been
suggested that this wing was at one time a sepecrate
building and was moved to its present location, framing
evidence suggests that it was built in place. The
exterior of the building has beén coveread witﬁ vertical

board eiding on the first floor and horizontal weather-—

o

boards in the upper gable of the south wall. There is
a door in the north bay on both the east and west facades

and a single window in the cehter of the south gabhle on

8

t

o

e first floor. Although the sash is gone, it would

apneaf to have been six-over-six. There is evidence

of a window in the south bay on the east facade, but this
has been blocked off and covered with siding. Thore

is also a window opening in the upwer gable on the south
wall. This may never have had any sash, but was covered
with a katten shutter hung on iron nintels driven through
the jamb. The eaves are finished with a plain bhox
coxpice on each facade and with beaéed and tapered

rakeboards on the gable. The roof is standing seam tin.
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CONTINUATICON SHEET
7.3 DESCRIPTION

The first floor of the main house consists 0% a
hall/parlour plan, with the larger hall to the north.
There are fireplaces centered on each gable wall and
an enclosed winder stair is set into the alcove to the
right of the fireplace in the hall. A door to the left
of the south fireplace leads to the wing. The two
roomsg are divided by a beaded vertical board partition
wall. Both of the mantels, the.front door and two interior
doors are gone, but otherwise the trim has remained
relatively intact. This consists of a beaded baseboard,
molded chairrail and molded architraves. The rear

exterior door and the door to the stairs are both of

batten construction with wide, random width beaded boards

secured to three battens. They are hung with very fine
wrougﬁt strap hinges.

The seccond and third floor of the main house are
of later construction, and are relatively nlain.

The roof is of common rafter construction, 41
degrees in pitch, with the rafters resting on a flat
false plate and mitred and butted at the ridge. Short
collar beams have been face nailed to the rafter

patrs, primarily to act as ceiling joists. One of

- these collars, as well as several roof nailers, are
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CONTINUATION SHEET
7.4 DESCRIPTION
obviously scraps of beaded siding from tﬁe earlier
house. These were probably salvaged fron the west wall
and from the unper gable of the north wall when the
building was raised.

The interior of the log wing is quite unusual.
The interior walls have never been vlastered, and the
post-and-plank construction is clearly visible. The
vertical vposts are unevenly gpaced on aoproximately
four to five-foot centers, with each window or door

opening framed by two posts. The nlanks are hewn and

pit sawn, and run continuous from one coerner post to

the other, ewcept where they are interrupted by door

and window openings. The intermediate posts are laid

“against the inner face of the planks and are secured

with wooden pegs. The ceiling joists ﬁave also remained
exposed, They are hewn and pit-sawn, and do not have
carefully finished edges. The bottom face of the

loft flooring forms the ceiling. All interior surfaces
have.been heavily coated with whitéwash, A large kitchen
firenlace protrudes into the roon from the north wall,
qu a steep ladder-stair in the southwest corner leads

to the loft. The beaded batten exterior doors add the

only touch of decoration to an otherwise purely
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CONTINUATION SHEET

7.5 DESCRIPTION

functional room.

The loft is quiteé plain, and apparently served
either as storage or as a snare sleening chamber, If ii
was used as living cuarters, it was with only the barest
necessities. The snace was unheated and unnlastered,
and apnparently had only'a battened wood shutter L
close the onehing in the south gable. The most
interesting detail in the loft are the floorboards,
which have finely beaded edges and are face nailed with
wrought nails.

The roof is of common rafter construction, 47 degrees

in pitch, with the rafter pairs secured at the ridge

.. by a pegged mortise-and-tenon joint. Several rafter

pairs are stabilized with collar beams; these are half-
lapped and nailed with machiﬁe nails. The rafters rest
on a flat false vnlate supported by the floor joists,
which are notched over thé top plate.

Because log buildings are so difficult to date, it
should be noted that the proposed date of this wing
(Secohd cuarter of the 19th century) is aquite tenuous.
Physical evidence is somewhat ambiguocus, as the
fldoring of the left is secured with wrought nails, but

machine nails are used everywvhere else., Other examples
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CONTINUATICON SHEET

7.6 DESCRIPTiON

of post-and-nlank construction can be found on Xent
Island, and these appear to range in date from the last
guarter of the 18th century through the second cuarter
of the 19th century. Although it has been previously
noted that the log section could predate the original

house, the rhysical evidence argues against this

‘mossibility.

Corn Crib

Té the rear of the house is a small corn crib
constructed in an unusual variation of the post-and-
plank form. The nlanks are dovetailed into the corner
posts and secured with an iron bolt through the center
of the joint. Although the iron bolts nay be later
than the building, the lack of pegs strongly suggests
they are original. Althoﬁgh the building is only 10
feet long by 7 feet wide, both of the side walls are
reinforced with intermediate posts. These are laid
against the inner face of the nlanks, and are secured
with wooden pegs. The negs have been split and a

thin wedge driven in the peg to secure the joint.

This type of connection is quite common in simnle
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7.7 DESCRIPTION

furniture, and in particular may be found in chaif
joints, but is extremely rare in'rough framing.
Another unusual detail is the method of support., The
ground €ills rest on round cedar posts or blocks set
in the ground. These appear to be relatively short,
but are heavily deteriorated dué tce the marshy
condition of the ground, and are difficult to analyze.
Other details of interest include feather-edge flush
siding in the upper gable of the south wall, and

faint traces of red mnaint under the eaves.
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
~"™PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC  _.COMMUNITY PLANNING — LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ __RELIGION

.1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 —ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —Music —THEATER
¥ 1800-1899 —.COMMERCE _—EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
% 1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES ' BUILDER/ARGHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Goodhand House is an interesting study
in the growth of a dwelling, beginning with a small
hall/parlour house and growing through two successive
stages to its present appearance. The primary
significance of this building, however, is found
in the unusual construction of the south wing.
T Although as many as two dozen buildings of post-
and-nlank ccnstruct;on have now bheen identified
in Tidewater Maryland, this is one of only a handful
that ever served as dwellings. The remainder are
farm buildings and meat houses. This is also a
rare example of log construction in which the
interior walls and framing have remained exposed.
Also of note is the small corn cribk to the
rear of the house. This is one of two known examples
in which the log planks are dovetailed into the
corner posts rather than the usual mortise-and-tenon

joint. The combination of dovetasil joints secured
3

/‘V‘”\

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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CONTINUATION SHER

8.1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFPICANCE

with iron bolts and intermediate posts secured wiéh
an unusual pegged joint make this an unicgue examnle
of log construction in Maryland. The combination of
bolted joints and pegged joints suggests thet this
is a rather late, transitional example, in which
more traditional methods are paétially retained and

partially discarded in favor of new technology.
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RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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